CITY OF LONG BEACH DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MARINE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION MINUTES NOVEMBER 20, 2008

I. CALL TO ORDER

The Parks and Recreation Commission meeting was called to order by Drew Satariano, President, at 9:00 a.m., at the El Dorado Park West Community Center, in the Senior Center Library. Phil Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine, took roll call and confirmed a quorum.

Present: Drew Satariano, President

Brett Waterfield, Vice President

Simon George Harry Saltzgaver Sarah Sangmeister

Absent: Albert Guerra

Staff: Phil Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine

J.C. Squires, Manager of Business Operations

Dennis Eschen, Manager of Planning and Development Ramon Arevalo, Acting Manager of Maintenance Operations

Lt. Dan Pratt, Park Rangers

Bill Greco, Supervising Park Ranger

Robin Black, Executive Assistant to the Director

Guests: Lindsay Magnall, CSULB Recreation and Leisure Major

John Moses, Plaza Little League Inc.

Daniel Montoya, Youth Soccer Diane Wiley, Partners of Parks

It was moved by Commissioner George and seconded by Commissioner Saltzgaver to excuse the absence of Commissioner Albert Guerra. The motion carried unanimously.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – OCTOBER 16, 2008

It was moved by Vice President Waterfield and seconded by Commissioner Saltzgaver to approve the October 16, 2008 Parks and Recreation Commission minutes. The motion carried unanimously.

III. COMMISSION ACTION ITEMS

#08-1101

Recommendation to authorize the Director or his or her management designee to execute the Personal Services and Instruction Agreements and amend Attachment "A" of the agreements as needed.

It was moved by Commissioner Saltzgaver and seconded by Vice President Waterfield to approve the recommendation. The motion carried unanimously.

#08-1102

Recommendation to authorize the Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine to execute all documents necessary to issue a permit to Future Baseball Starts for the provision and operation of winter baseball camps from November 28 through December 31, 2008, in City of Long Beach parks.

Mr. Squires stated that the company left a voice message withdrawing their request and they would run their camps in another city.

#08-1103

Recommendation to approve the placement and installation of a memorial bench in Bluff Park, in honor of Gisela (Gale) Brown.

Commissioner Saltzgaver mentioned that this is another memorial bench by the Lone Sailor Memorial and asked if there is room for any more?

Mr. Hester said that there is a fair amount of space in this area and there is room for many more.

Ms. Wiley mentioned that the location of the bench may change slightly with the change of the memorial bricks, but that would be no problem.

It was moved by Commissioner Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner George to approve the recommendation. The motion carried unanimously.

#08-1104

Recommendation to authorize the Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine to execute a permit for the operation of a picnic service concession with Los Angeles Partyworks, Inc., for a term of one year expiring on November 19, 2009, with options for renewal, subject to the discretion of the Director.

It was moved by Commissioner Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner George to approve the recommendation. The motion carried unanimously.

IV. COMMITTEE STATUS REPORTS

A. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE President Satariano, Chair

President Satariano stated that they met and discussed the agenda and discussed holding another Commission Retreat in January, since last year's retreat was so productive. He said that it looked like a Friday afternoon, from about 12:00 noon to 4:00 p.m., would work for everyone. They discussed dates and venues and came up with a potential date of January 9, and a tentative location of Keesal, Young and Logan.

Commissioner Saltzgaver mentioned the California Association of Parks and Recreation Commissioners and Board Members Retreat on January 24, and thought that the Commission Retreat should be held before that.

B. FINANCE AND APPEALS COMMITTEE President Satariano, Chair

President Satariano said that the Committee did not meet but the financial statement was included in the packet.

C. PARK SAFETY COMMITTEE Commissioner Saltzgaver, Chair

Commissioner Saltzgaver stated that the Committee met this morning. He said that the City Council agenda item regarding park ranger staffing was postponed for two weeks. The proposal was to pull back the park rangers to El Dorado in order to keep two jobs, to move two of the park rangers to Special Events, and to cut a series of programs such as Junior Band and support for the parades. He asked how the Department is paying for the two park rangers currently?

Mr. Hester responded that the Department is absorbing the cost until a decision is made.

Commissioner Saltzgaver stated that they discussed the Shakeout earthquake drill and brought up that the Department has 12 designated shelters.

Mr. Greco stated that the Kids Fishing Derby is going to be held at El Dorado Park this Saturday. The Dan Hernandez Youth Foundation is co-sponsoring the event and barbecuing hotdogs for the kids. He invited the Commissioners to attend.

Mr. Eschen said that new park projects would be brought before the park rangers for their review and input.

D. MARKETING AND CUSTOMER SERVICE COMMITTEE Commissioner Guerra, Chair

President Satariano stated that since Commissioner Guerra is absent, they would defer the committee report to next month.

E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE Vice President Waterfield, Chair

Vice President Waterfield stated that the Committee did not meet.

F. CITY SCHOOLS/JOINT COMMITTEE Commissioner Sangmeister, Chair

President Satariano stated that he would like this committee to go into abeyance so those committee members could be more effective in other areas. The Commission is displeased with the interface between the School District and this subcommittee at our level.

Commissioner Saltzgaver stated that he was in favor of that.

Mr. Squires mentioned that the agreement is currently with the School District and with their current budget issues, has been put on the shelf. The School District and the Department are still using each other's fields.

President Satariano requested that Mr. Eschen update his list of schools that could be used for joint use with the Department and then schedule a meeting with the Superintendent.

Mr. Hester said that he would pull the previous letter from the Commission to the Superintendent and reiterate those points.

It was moved by Commissioner Saltzgaver and seconded by Vice President Waterfield to suspend the City Schools/Joint Committee at this time with direction to the Executive Committee to continue to work towards restructuring the relationship between the Department and the School District. The motion carried unanimously.

President Satariano said that he would serve on the Park Safety Committee and that he would get input from the Commissioners to revise committee assignments.

G. SPECIAL EVENTS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE Commissioner Guerra, Chair

President Satariano said that Commissioner Guerra is absent, but the committee did meet, they meet monthly. They are working on policies for barbecues in parks and on public computer usage in park facilities.

V. <u>DIRECTOR'S REPORT TO COMMISSION</u>

A. Recommendation to receive and file the Director's Monthly Highlights Report for October 2008.

President Satariano asked for any comments or questions on the monthly report.

Commissioner George said that he had a question on page 7, about the 20th Annual Long Beach Senior Tournament. He asked if that was happening every year?

Mr. Hester responded yes.

Commissioner George asked if staff knew that Cathy Jacobson-Guzy was going to run the Seal Beach Tennis Center?

Mr. Hester responded yes. She talked to him ahead of time. There is no conflict with her doing this.

It was moved by Commissioner Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner Sangmeister to approve the recommendation. The motion carried unanimously.

VI. CORRESPONDENCE

President Satariano said that they received no correspondence.

VII. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

A. PARTNERS OF PARKS REPORT – DIANE WILEY

Ms. Wiley said that Partners of Parks (POP) has done their first donor mailing that is going to 5,700 households in the zip code 90815, based on a list that was provided by the individuals who have donated in the last couple of years. They anticipate a seven to ten percent response

rate. She distributed POP brochures and encouraged the Commissioners to hand those out to the public.

Ms. Wiley mentioned that every two weeks the Long Beach Business Journal does a profile on a non-profit organization in Long Beach and they are doing a profile on POP. Ms. Wiley stated that POP is also purchasing \$1,500 worth of fish for the Kids Fishing Derby.

Commissioner Saltzgaver asked what POP is doing with the money from the shipping company donated for the Universally Accessible Playgrounds and keeping them in the loop?

Ms. Wiley said that she is given free tickets to Kings and Ducks games and she offers those to the company. At this moment, that money is sitting in the account raising interest. On Sunday, March 15, a progressive dinner party fundraiser will be held to benefit POP. She said that POP would also be doing a kickoff for Universally Accessible Playgrounds at that event.

Commissioner Saltzgaver suggested that POP show that something is being done with that project.

Mr. Hester stated that staff needs to figure how to break down the Universally Accessible Playground project into smaller pieces to get it started.

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

A. Approve this report for inclusion by the Planning Commission in the Annual Implementation Report for the Open Space and Recreation Element.

Mr. Eschen said that this is the fifth update since the adoption of the Open Space and Recreation Element. One acre of additional, completed park space was gained this year and an overall 45 acres has been gained in the last five years. The number of parks is falling behind the population and we are getting further away from the goal of having 8 acres per 1,000 residents. However, in the next year or so there will be a number of projects under development. He said that included in the packet is a list of properties purchased but not developed yet and we are making much better progress there.

Commissioner Saltzgaver asked about the Sports Park project, which is still stated as part of the Open Space Element. He is uncomfortable having that in the report since the City is not actively pursuing development.

Mr. Hester responded that the Department is pursing development. Construction documents are 55 percent complete. This is an annual report and no change has been made that has been approved by the City Council. The Sports Park project is out there and the Parks and Recreation Commission will be involved in the future.

President Satariano said that perhaps the Open Space and Recreation Element should be discussed in the Commission Retreat.

Mr. Eschen said that this report goes to the Planning Commission and then the Planning Commission reports on a couple of additional items and then includes this report.

Commissioner Saltzgaver asked if there was a way to provide a list of park acreage per district?

Mr. Hester said that could be done. The City Manager has asked Geoff Hall to put together a report on how much money was spent for new parks over the last few years. He also commended Mr. Eschen for all the work put into this report.

It was moved by Commissioner Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner Sangmeister to approve the recommendation. The motion carried unanimously.

B. Los Cerritos Project

Mr. Hester said that this is for the Commission's information. The City Council laid this item over for three weeks to December 9. There was conversation about holding another closed session.

Commissioner Saltzgaver said that this is a very complex deal and has a lot of moving parts. How this works was not explained at all at the City Council meeting. There are outside interests to clean up the land, which is the Port.

Mr. Hester said that Councilwoman Reyes Uranga asked specifically for the City Manager to look at four or five other options related to development on the west side. One of those is 10 or 12 acres identified off the 710 Freeway that has not been developed. This could be developed for soccer fields.

Mr. Eschen said that he has requested a report on what still could be placed in the remaining 18 acres at the Sports Park site.

IX. <u>COMMENTS</u>

A. AUDIENCE

President Satariano asked for comments from the audience.

Mr. John Moses said that he is the Vice President of Plaza Little League and he is concerned about recent issues. He said that he has some background in business and athletics. He is an elected official and represents several hundred families. They have upgraded their facility, painted and remodeled their snack shack, the bathrooms, put in new grass and new dirt and new bullpens. At this point they are not being recognized as Plaza Little League because they are trying to bring change to a dying program. They decided to charter with the Cal Ripken League. They have a contract with the City until 2011 for the fields, but they are not being recognized by the City Attorney' Office. This concerns him. They are closing down they winter program and usually start going into field maintenance. The old members of the little league program have decided they want to start a new organization as of October and have put together a new organization and want to compete for the fields. He is concerned that what they want to do what is right for the people. This weekend he has seen fighting over the fields in front of the kids and he is ashamed of that. A decision needs to be made soon as to when they will be recognized so this activity can be stopped.

Vice President Waterfield asked the name of the new organization?

Mr. Moses responded that they call themselves Long Beach Plaza Little League Team. Unfortunately, they are telling everyone that they are the ones that have been there forever. He said that his group is signing up numbers ahead of time to get their general membership early. He has received several hundred applications already.

Mr. Hester thanked Mr. Moses for coming. He said that last year, the transition from Los Altos Little League to Cal Ripken was made smoothly and there was no conflict. The same was happening with the Plaza Little League and they thought everything was going smoothly. A decision was made by the old Plaza group to take over, who did not want this change to happen for a number of reasons. A lot of it has to do with their charter. The present board has been moving forward with the change and operated the facility last year. The current policy from the Commission's standpoint is that the Department recognizes the group that has been at that particular facility as the first priority. They do their registration and justify their numbers and continue moving on with their operation.

Mr. Hester said that the City Attorney's Office is doing research and has to make a decision. The City Attorney has said that the current group is to turn the keys in to the Department while the decision is being made. The Department will probably try and bring the presidents of the two groups together with the City Attorney's office right after Thanksgiving. The Department is involved because we are issuing permits. Because of the lighting permit fee changes as of the first of January, the Department is going to pull all permits back and reissue the permits with the new lighting fees. Those will come back to the Parks and Recreation Commission for approval. The Department believes the City Attorney has all the information, but he has to make a decision.

Mr. Moses said that a member of the group who was voted out is a member of the City Attorney's Office as well. The agreement with the City is with Long Beach Plaza, Inc., who he represents. They charter with Little League or Cal Ripken. They have several assets at the field and asked if they could leave those things there or would have to take them out.

Mr. Hester said that they could leave the assets there temporarily.

President Satariano said that Mr. Moses' appearance at the Parks and Recreation Commission meeting was well positioned. He is comfortable that Department staff will handle the situation.

Mr. Squires said that the attorney has a clear view of the entities and he should be able to resolve the issue quickly. The attorney that is looking at this does not have a family, so he is not a part of this.

Mr. Daniel Montoya said that he is a resident of Long Beach. He is in commercial real estate and has quite a few clients who are heavily involved in soccer. He said he wanted to come in and see what was going on. In commercial real estate they are able to identify a lot of properties that might be available for development for soccer. There is no soccer field in Long Beach with lights. He is very interested in what the City is already working on as far as the projects. He has a couple of people who are financially looking to participate in the development of different facilities and fields, specifically soccer. He was disappointed that the Sports Park was being swapped out. He would like to talk to staff about what he can do.

Mr. Hester asked that he contact him to discuss his ideas.

B. STAFF

President Satariano asked for comments from the staff.

Mr. Hester distributed the City of Long Beach Gas and Oil Properties calendars to the Commissioners. He said that most of the pictures are of park sites. He also distributed a laminated park map and a *Facts at a Glance* brochure to help in finding phone numbers.

Mr. Arevalo said he wanted to clarify the memorial bench requests for Bluff Park. Staff is swapping the original benches for the new memorial benches. There are still six original benches left to be replaced.

C. COMMISSIONERS

President Satariano asked for comments from the Commissioners.

Vice President Waterfield said that 40 CSULB students helped hold a Halloween Carnival at Silverado Park with booths and jumpers.

X. <u>NEXT MEETING</u>

President Satariano stated that the next meeting would be held at 9:00 a.m., on Thursday, December 18, 2008, at the El Dorado Park West Community Center, in the Senior Center Library, 2800 Studebaker Road, Long Beach.

XI. ADJOURNMENT

President Satariano adjourned the meeting at 10:54 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Robin Black

Executive Assistant to the Director

c: Phil T. Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine

MINUTES REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA DECEMBER 18, 2008

The Board of Water Commissioners of the City of Long Beach met in the Board Room of the Administration Building, 1800 E. Wardlow Road, Long Beach, California, on December 18, 2008.

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by President Allen.

PRESENT: John Allen Commissioner

Paul Blanco Commissioner Frank Clarke Commissioner Suzanne Dallman Commissioner

Charles Parkin Principal Deputy City Attorney

Kevin L. Wattier General Manager

Sandra L. Fox Secretary to the Board of Water

Commissioners

Robert C. Cheng

B. Anatole Falagan

Matthew P. Lyons

Deputy General Manager – Operations
Deputy General Manager – Business
Director, Planning & Conservation

Eric Leung Director of Water Resources

Dynna Long Office Administrator
Bruce Molyneaux Verizon Business

ABSENT: William B. Townsend Commissioner (EXCUSED)

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Charles Parkin led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

December 4, 2008

Upon motion by Commissioner Blanco, seconded by Commissioner Dallman, the minutes of the meeting of December 4, 2008 were unanimously approved.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

President Allen opened the public comment period. As there were no requests to address the Board on non-agenda items, the public comment period was closed.

4. REVIEW BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE FOR JANUARY 2009

John D. S. Allen, President, Board of Water Commissioners

President Allen reported that due to the New Year's holiday, the January 2009 Board schedule would be adjusted with meetings held on the 2nd and 4th Thursdays.

The Board discussed the proposed meeting schedule for the month of January 2009.

The Board agreed to the following meeting schedule:

January 8, 2009 Special Meeting – 9:15 A.M. Special Meeting – 7:00 P.M.

5. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

• John D. S. Allen, President, Board of Water Commissioners

President Allen reported that he enjoyed the many complimentary comments made by the City Council members regarding the Water Department, the staff and the Commissioners, at the December 2, 2008 city council meeting during the giveaway drawing for the nine efficient landscape gardens.

NOTE: Commissioner Clarke joined the meeting at 7:05 P.M.

President Allen and Vice President Blanco commented on their attendance at the Colorado River Water User's Association (CRWUA) Conference held in Las Vegas, December 15 – December 17, 2008. They particularly noted the comments made by Interior Secretary Kempthorne regarding water issues in the West, and how these issues will be addressed by the new incoming administration.

President Allen also commented on the benefits of hydroelectric power as discussed at the CRWUA conference.

He also reported that both Australia and Israel made presentations on desalination projects at the conference.

6. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT Kevin L. Wattier, General Manager

<u>UPDATE ON WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE GIVEAWAY WINNERS</u>

Mr. Lyons, Director of Planning & Conservation summarized the timeline staff is working on to implement the program. He noted that 1,695 entries had been received for this giveaway program. He also provided an overview of each of the winning homes along with photographs of the areas to be re-landscaped with water efficient plants.

Commissioner Blanco inquired about the cost for this program. Mr. Lyons responded the program cost was \$90,000.

Commissioner Dallman asked about the plantings taking place in the spring/summer, rather than the normal fall schedule for drought tolerant plants. She inquired if the resident's water bills would be subsidized to assist these plants to take root. Mr. Lyons responded no, as they anticipated a drop in water usage since grass areas that require more water were being replaced with water efficient plants.

BIOLOGICAL OPINION ON DELTA SMELT

Mr. Wattier commented on the recently released U.S. Fish and Wildlife biological opinion for Delta Smelt. He advised this ruling makes permanent the temporary pumping restrictions imposed by Judge Wanger which is a negative ruling for water agencies. He noted that there was one important change that in wetter than normal years there was a requirement for additional outflow into the Delta to increase better habitat for the Delta Smelt. He noted this change, "clips off" the surplus generated in wet years, which affects the ability to refill storage facilities.

President Allen inquired what the impact might be for recycled water for recharging. Mr. Wattier advised it may be necessary for increased treatment of recycled water for direct recharge without blending.

GROUNDWATER STORAGE FRAMEWORK UPDATE

Mr. Wattier advised he plans on bringing several action items regarding the Groundwater Framework to the Board at the January 8, 2009 board meeting.

OROVILLE RESERVOIR HISTORICAL LOW LEVELS

Mr. Wattier advised that Oroville is not refilling, even with the recent rain and snow in Northern California. He reviewed a chart indicating the Lake Oroville reservoir was 27.4% full as of December 18, 2008.

Mr. Wattier reported he expected the State Water Project allocation to remain at the previously reported 15% allocation level.

7. CONSENT CALENDAR

It was moved by Commissioner Blanco, and seconded by Commissioner Dallman to approve Consent Calendar items 7a. through 7c.

Commissioner Clarke inquired about the size of the contract as noted in Consent Calendar item 7b., and asked what type of work was being done. Mr. Leung explained this contract amount was well within the engineering estimate. Mr. Wattier advised this project would relocate the water line to the streets and abandon the connections in the alleys.

Commissioner Clarke questioned the work being done as noted in Consent Calendar item 7c. Mr. Wattier clarified that Consent Calendar item 7c. was for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the alley service connection project.

President Allen inquired if the bid chosen was the lowest, and the lowest responsible bid. Mr. Wattier responded yes.

President Allen called for the question. Consent Calendar items 7a. through 7c. were unanimously approved.

7a. Approval of Transfer of Funds by Journal Entry Dated December 18, 2008

A communication was presented to the Board from Paul Fujita, which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

7b. Adopt Specifications WD-11-06A for the Alley Service Connection Conversion, Pine and Locust Avenues Project, and Authorize the General Manager to Sign a Construction Contract with Dominguez General Engineering, Inc., in the Amount of \$558,900

A communication was presented to the Board from Isaac Pai, which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

7c. Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Hall & Foreman, Inc., to Provide Construction Management and Inspection Services for the Alley Service Connection Conversion, Pine and Locust Avenues Project, in an amount not-to-exceed \$109,337 for the period ending December 31, 2009

A communication was presented to the Board from Isaac Pai, which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

- 8. Adopt a Resolution of the Board of Water Commissioners of the City of Long Beach Authorizing the General Manager to Acquire Audio Conferencing and Net Conferencing Services from Verizon Business through the State of California Integrated Information Network Agreement ("CALNET II"), in an amount not to exceed \$6,000 per year
 - Kevin L. Wattier, General Manager

Mr. Wattier reported this agreement "piggybacks" on a State contract to provide audio and net conferencing services.

It was moved by Commissioner Blanco and seconded by Commissioner Clarke to Adopt a Resolution of the Board of Water Commissioners of the City of Long Beach Authorizing the General Manager to Acquire Audio Conferencing and Net Conferencing Services from Verizon Business through the State of California Integrated Information Network Agreement ("CALNET II"), in an amount not to exceed \$6,000 per year

President Allen called for a Roll Call Vote.

A roll call vote was taken as follows:

AYES:	COMMISSIONERS:	PAUL BLANCO, SUZANNE DALLMAN,
		FRANK CLARKE, JOHN ALLEN
NOES:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSENT:	COMMISSIONERS:	WILLIAM TOWNSEND
ABSTAIN:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE

Motion carried 4 yes; 1 absence.

- 9. Review Resolution No. WD-1236, a Resolution of the Board of Water Commissioners of the City of Long Beach, to Possibly Increase the Number of Regularly Scheduled Meetings
 - Frank Clarke, Board Secretary

Commissioner Clarke requested this agenda item be held over to the January 8, 2009 board meeting.

- 10. Review possibility of increasing Board of Water Commissioner Board Meeting attendance stipend
 - Frank Clarke, Board Secretary

Commissioner Clarke requested this agenda item be held over to the January 8, 2009 board meeting.

11. Seawater Desalination Program Update and Study Session

Eric Leung, Director of Water Resources

Mr. Leung provided a Seawater Desalination Program Update. He noted the following during his presentation: 1) phased approach to research and development of desalination of seawater; 2) he reviewed the efforts made under the Pilot Program; 3) he summarized the method being researched; 4) he discussed the construction and operation of the Prototype Plant; 5) he reviewed the efforts made at the Under Ocean Floor Intake Project; 6) he identified the next step in the research to be the UV/Chlorine Dioxide research which will optimize the life of the membranes, and delay significant costs for membrane replacement; 7) he reviewed future site selection criteria which included permitting and environmental consideration; hydrogeology and intake; site development and costs.

Mr. Leung also reviewed Post-Treatment research which will carefully assess the impacts to the existing distribution system.

Mr. Wattier commented on the 2005 Technical Memorandum entitled "City of Long Beach Seawater Desalination Plant Site Alternatives Study" that had been previously distributed to the Board members. He noted the original goal of this report was to convince the Metropolitan Water District that viable sites did exist in the City of Long Beach for a future desalination plant. He noted that new information has to be incorporated that would allow for an update of this analysis.

Mr. Cheng reviewed current desalination research efforts and results. He highlighted the contaminants Boron, Bromide and Calcium that appear in desalinated water, and summarized the regulatory limits for these elements.

He also reviewed the goal of testing the hydraulics and quality of water produced at the Under Ocean Floor Intake Project. He noted significant concerns with low tide events. He then highlighted the next steps in the research at this site.

Commissioner Dallman inquired as to what other constituents are removed. Mr. Cheng responded that a substantial number of organics are removed during the process.

Mr. Wattier reported that LBWD plans to ask the California Coastal Commission for permission to operate at the Under Ocean site for an additional year to confirm research in removal of constituents.

Mr. Cheng reviewed the testing program at the Desalination Prototype Plant. He noted energy savings achieved by NF2 process compared to SWRO. He advised staff expects to conduct further studies on energy usage and savings.

Mr. Cheng reviewed UV/CIO₂ research, and noted the goal of this research is to assist in maximum membrane longevity. He reported chlorine as a disinfectant is not an option as this destroys the membranes, so alternate disinfectants (UV; CIO₂) are being researched. He reported that testing continues along with DuPont and UCLA as partners in this research program.

Commissioner Clarke inquired if the Australian process had bromide. Mr. Cheng responded yes. Commissioner Clarke asked how they handled this problem. Mr. Cheng advised they use a double-pass RO which is very expensive.

Commissioner Blanco inquired about an implementation deadline. Mr. Cheng responded that by 2010 LBWD planned on completing research, with a possible small operating plant online by 2015.

President Allen inquired where the desalinated water would be introduced into the existing system. Mr. Wattier explained that this would be dependent on where the plant was sited.

12. REPORT OF THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT (MWD) BOARD MEETING ON DECEMBER 9, 2008

• Kevin L. Wattier, General Manager

Mr. Wattier provided the report in the absence of Suja Lowenthal, Metropolitan Water District Director.

Mr. Wattier provided a summary of the action taken at the MWD December 9, 2008 board meeting. He noted the MWD board had authorized execution of the Delta Habitat Conservation and Conveyance Program Memorandum of Agreement and three related funding management agreements. These agreements are needed to implement the planning process for the Delta water conveyance system and companion ecosystem restoration effort called for in the comprehensive Bay-Delta Conservation Plan. The cost of this plan to MWD will be approximately \$35 million, to be paid over the next three years.

Mr. Wattier noted previously that the MWD Board had approved policy to cutoff funding to Member Agencies for water conservation programs if they did not have their cities enact water conservation ordinances like Long Beach had in place. He advised it appeared that some municipal water districts were having trouble getting their cities to enact ordinances. He reported that some of these agencies were expected to seek waivers at the next MWD board meeting.

13. LEGISLATIVE ISSUES/ACTIONS/BILLS

Ryan J. Alsop, Director, Government & Public Affairs

No report.

Board of Water Commissioners December 18, 2008 Page 8

14. NEW BUSINESS

None.

15. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, President Allen adjourned the meeting at 8:47 p.m. to the next special meeting of the Water Commission to be held January 8, 2009, in the Board Room of the Administration Building, 1800 E. Wardlow, in Long Beach, California.

Frank Clarke, Secretary

Attest:

John D. S. Allen, President